University of Toronto Archives and Records Management Services



# Mel Watkins fonds B2022-0034

Emily Sommers, June 2024

For additional information on how to use UTARMS' finding aids, please see our guide.

© University of Toronto Archives and Records Management Services, 2024

#### Contents

Biographical note	3
Scope and content	5
Series 1: Personal and Biographical	
Series 2: Notebooks	6
Series 3: University of Toronto and Teaching	7
Series 4: Task Force on Foreign Ownership and the Structure of Canadian Industry	7
Series 5: The Waffle and the NDP	8
Series 6: Activism and Consultancy	9
Series 7: Research and Writing	9
Series 8: Harold Innis	
Series 9: Talks	0
Appendix – File Listings	1
Series 1: Personal, Biographical, and Education1	1
Series 3: University of Toronto and Teaching1	2
Series 4: Task Force on Foreign Ownership and the Structure of Canadian Industry.1	4
Series 5: The Waffle and NDP1	5
Series 6: Activism and Consultancy1	8
Series 7: Research and Writing2	1
Series 8: Harold Innis2	3
Series 9: Talks2	4

## **Biographical note**

Melville (Mel) Henry Watkins (1932-2020) was a Professor Emeritus of the Departments of Economics and Political Science at the University of Toronto, where he researched and taught on the subject of Canadian economic history and the nature of Canada's political economy. In addition to his academic appointment, Watkins was co-leader (along with James Laxer) of The Waffle (1969-1972), a movement within the New Democratic Party (NDP).

Watkins was born on 15 May 1932 in McKellar, Ontario. At the age of 16, he enrolled at the University of Toronto, alongside his twin brother Murray, receiving a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1952. He pursued graduate studies at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) and returned to the U of T in 1958, first as a Lecturer, then Assistant Professor (1962), Associate Professor (1965), and Professor (1970).

Watkins had a lifelong interest in the work of Harold Innis and his staples thesis, and in 1963 published an article "A Staple Theory of Economic Growth" that would modernize Innis' ideas and apply them to a postwar context, in which Canada had an unbalanced reliance on natural resources exploitation and foreign investment. Watkins would write about Innis' ideas throughout his career, in addition to writing about the impact of multinational corporations and foreign investment on the Canadian economy, and the implications of Canada's resource-based pattern of development for indigenous communities, particularly in the North.

In 1967, at the behest of Walter Gordon, a minister in the federal cabinet, Watkins was appointed head of the federal Task Force on the Structure of Canadian Industry. The federal government at the time was concerned with the impact of high levels of foreign investment on the development of the Canadian economy. The Task Force's report, known colloquially as the "Watkins Report", led to the establishment of the Canada Development Corporation to help facilitate greater Canadian ownership and the Foreign Investment Review Agency to regulate foreign ownership.

Watkins' concern for Canada's economic sovereignty led him to co-found the Waffle, a wing of the New Democratic Party that called for an increase in public ownership of the economy as a means of securing Canadian independence from the United States. The group was expelled from the NDP in 1972 and went on to form its own party, the Movement for an Independent Socialist Canada, but by 1974 had disbanded.

In addition to his teaching and writing activities, Watkins was active in several other social and political causes, in which he gave talks and served as a consultant. In the mid-1970s, Watkins worked as an economic advisor to the Dene Nation during the

University of Toronto Archives

Mel Watkins fonds B2022-0034

Mackenzie Valley Pipeline Inquiry. He was also active in 1980s and 1990s in the opposition movement to the Canada-United States Free Trade Agreement and subsequent North American Free Trade Agreement. He would eventually rejoin the NDP and run as the NDP candidate in the riding of Beaches-East York in the 1997 and 2000 federal elections. Upon his retirement from the University of Toronto, he continued to lecture and write, participate in peace and anti-nuclear groups such as Science for Peace and Pugwash Canada.

In 2005 he received an honorary Doctor of Laws (LL.D.) degree from the University of Guelph and in 2019 he was named a member of the Order of Canada. He died in Ottawa on April 2, 2020.

The way archival record creators identify themselves and are identified by others is key to understanding the perspectives and content of their records. Mel Watkins was a Caucasian, Anglo-Saxon, heterosexual man. This information was provided by Watkins' spouse.

References:

- "In Memoriam: Mel Watkins", University of Toronto Department of Economics Newsletter, Fall 2020, <u>https://newsletter.economics.utoronto.ca/fall-2020/in-memoriam-mel-watkins/</u>
- Valpy, Michael. "Prominent socialist intellectual Mel Watkins believed in a political philosophy of compassion" *The Globe and Mail*, 10 April 2020
- Wikipedia contributors, "Mel Watkins," Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia, <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Mel\_Watkins&oldid=1194214155</u> (accessed April 15, 2024).
- Wolfe, David. "Remembering Mel Watkins (1932-2020)", 6 April 2020, https://politics.utoronto.ca/2020/04/remembering-mel-watkins-1932-2020/

University of Toronto Archives

Mel Watkins fonds B2022-0034

### Scope and content

1950-2016 2.23 m of textual records (16 boxes) 1 photograph

Records documenting the life and career of Mel Watkins, Professor Emeritus of the Departments of Economics and Political Science at the University of Toronto. Though not a comprehensive account of his life and career, the records nevertheless document Watkins' active involvement across many groups and organizations, in particular the federal government's Task Force on the Structure of Canadian Industry and The Waffle and the New Democratic Party. Also includes numerous writings and talks about Canada's economic history, Harold Innis, and the anti-nuclear movement.

See series descriptions for more information.

**Custodial Note:** Records donated to UTARMS from Watkins' family in Ottawa in November 2022.

**Arrangement:** Records follow an imposed order created by the archivist as no consistent original order could be discerned.

#### Access: Open

**Conservation Note:** A number of files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation reasons, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> for further details. Please contact the University Archivist for additional information.

Boxes: B2022-0034/001 - /016 B2022-0034/001P

#### **Related material:**

- Stephen Clarkson fonds
- Science for Peace (Toronto, Ont.) fonds
- Peter H. Russell fonds
- A. Edward Safarian fonds
- David Wolfe fonds

Records related to the Waffle Movement can also be found in the Co-operative Commonwealth Federation and New Democratic Party fonds at Library and Archives Canada. University of Toronto Archives

Mel Watkins fonds B2022-0034

## Series 1: Personal, Biographical, and Education

1950-2005, n.d. 0.07 m of textual records 1 photograph

Series consists of personal and biographical material about Watkins: curriculum vitae; honorary degree from the University of Guelph; files of undergraduate and graduate coursework; some handwritten notes / diary entries; and a photograph of Watkins speaking in Convocation Hall in February 1996.

Access: Open; some files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation reasons, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> in appendix for further details.

Boxes: B2022-0034/001(01) - (09) B2022-0034/001P

#### Series 2: Notebooks

1980-2016 0.91 m of textual records

Series consists of Watkins' notebooks that include notes about his daily activities and readings. He was an avid reader and would make notes about current events and things he was reading, alongside occasional notes about his day.

Arrangement: Chronological Access: Open

Box	Date range
B2022-0034/002	June 1980 - June 1981, [ca. 1983], 1986 - Aug. 1988
B2022-0034/003	Aug. 1988 - Oct. 1993
B2022-0034/004	Sep. 1993 - Nov. 1996
B2022-0034/005	Nov. 1996 - March 2000
B2022-0034/006	March 2000 - Apr. 2003
B2022-0034/007	June 2003 - Nov. 2006
B2022-0034/008	Nov. 2006 - Feb. 2008, 2014-2016, n.d.

### Series 3: University of Toronto and Teaching

1959-2010 0.2 m of textual records

Series consists of files related to Watkins' activities as a professor at the University of Toronto and as guest lecturer at Carleton University (2005-2010) and Simon Fraser University (2009) after his retirement from the U of T. Includes correspondence, activity reports, and committee minutes, including the Rochdale College Governing Council. There is very little material about courses taught by Watkins at the U of T.

Access: Open; some files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation reasons, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> in appendix for further details.

Boxes: B2022-0034/009(01) - (23)

## Series 4: Task Force on the Structure of Canadian Industry

1967-1968 0.13 m of textual records

In 1967, at the behest of Walter Gordon, a minister in the federal cabinet, Watkins was appointed head of the federal Task Force on the Structure of Canadian Industry. The federal government at the time was concerned with the impact of high levels of foreign investment on the development of the Canadian economy.<sup>1</sup> The final report, known as the "Watkins report", recommended strict regulation of foreign investment in Canada and the establishment of the Canada Development Corporation to help facilitate greater Canadian ownership – public shares were offered to Canadians for petroleum, mines and petrochemicals – as well as the Foreign Investment Review Agency to regulate foreign ownership.<sup>2</sup>

Series includes files documenting the activities and Watkin's role as head of the Task Force. Includes memos and correspondence, meeting minutes, research conducted on behalf of the committee, and report drafts.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Wolfe, David. "Remembering Mel Watkins (1932-2020)", 6 April 2020, <u>https://politics.utoronto.ca/2020/04/remembering-mel-watkins-1932-2020/</u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Valpy, Michael. "Prominent socialist intellectual Mel Watkins believed in a political philosophy of compassion" *The Globe and Mail*, 10 April 2020

**Note:** A copy of the final published report is available through the University of Toronto Libraries' LibrarySearch platform.

**Access:** Open; some files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation purposes, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> in appendix for further details.

Boxes: B2022-0034/010(01) - (12)

#### Series 5: The Waffle and the NDP

1969-2009 0.2 m of textual records

In 1969, Watkins along with James Laxer, became leader of the Waffle, a group formed from members of the New Democratic Party (NDP) that wished to push the party further to the left and called for the nationalization of Canadian industries to take them out of the hands of American interests. By 1972, the Waffle was pushed out of the NDP, and went on to form its own party, the Movement for an Independent Socialist Canada, but by 1974 it had disbanded.

Files in this series document the activities of the Waffle at the local, provincial, and national level, including its *Manifesto for an Independent Socialist Canada*, policy statements, meeting minutes, and news clippings. Also included is correspondence with James Laxer following the publication of his report in 1984 which critiqued the NDP's economic policies. Finally, the series includes writings and talks by Watkins' reflecting on the Waffle and its legacy, and his nomination speech when he ran as the NDP candidate in the riding of Beaches-East York during the 2000 federal election.

Access: Open; some files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation reasons, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> in appendix for further details.

Box: B2022-0034/011(01) - (42)

### Series 6: Activism and Consultancy

1965-[200-] 0.26 m of textual records

Files in this series document Watkins involvement in several progressive and intellectual groups including the Internation Forum Foundation and teach-ins about the Vietnam War; the University League for Social Reform (ULSR) and its project on Nationalism in Canada; his role as an economic advisor to the Dene Nation (then known as the Indian Brotherhood of the Northwest Territories) during the Mackenzie Valley Pipeline Inquiry; the opposition movements to the Canada-United States Free Trade Agreement and subsequent North American Free Trade Agreement; and his interest in the anti-nuclear and peace movements with groups such as Science for Peace and Pugwash.

Access: Open; some files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation reasons, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> in appendix for further details.

Boxes: B2022-0034/011(43) - /013(11)

#### Series 7: Research and Writing

1963-[ca. 2013], n.d. 0.2 m of textual records

Series consists of correspondence, subject files, notes, and some drafts of writings by Watkins. Topics primarily consist of economic history, trade, foreign ownership, and globalization.

Access: Open; some files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation reasons, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> in appendix for further details.

Boxes: B2022-0034/013(12) - /014(12)

### Series 8: Harold Innis

[198-]-[ca. 2014], n.d. 0.13 m of textual records

Since his undergraduate studies at the University of Toronto, Watkins has been interested in Harold Innis' work, particularly his staples thesis. He would go on to write about Innis's ideas and his legacy throughout his career. In addition, in June 1994, Mel Watkins was named the Executive Director of the new Harold Innis Research Institute which was created by the Harold Innis Foundation.

Records in this series include Watkin's writings, research, and lecture notes about Innis and his legacy, along with Innis Memorial Lecture remarks by John Ralston Saul (1994) and Rick Salutin (1996).

Access: Open; some files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation reasons, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> in appendix for further details.

Boxes: B2022-0034/014(13) - /015(03)

## Series 9: Talks

1957-2011 0.13 m of textual records

Watkins was a frequent public speaker and was known as a public intellectual, always willing to debate his ideas and to share them with broad audiences. This series includes copies of talks given, some typed with annotations, others just handwritten notes. Also includes some posters and correspondence related to talks given.

Access: Open; some files have been moved to box B2022-0034/016 for conservation reasons, as they were treated and remediated for mould. See <u>file listing</u> in appendix for further details.

Boxes: B2022-0034/015(04) - (34)

## Appendix – File Listings

## Series 1: Personal, Biographical, and Education

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/001(01)	[CV and biographical information]		Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/001(02)	[Undergraduate course work and examination questions]	1950- 1952	Open
B2022-0034/001(03)	Economic Analysis - [Paul] Samuelson [notebook]	[195-]	Open
B2022-0034/001(04)	[MIT coursework - exams, essays]	1955- 1956	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/001(05)	CBC Times, "Economics Series on 'Learning Stage"' [article about Watkins' appearance on program]	Mar. 1964	Open
B2022-0034/001(06)	[Personal notes / diary]	[198-]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/001(07)	Memoirs - Personal [1 page of notes]	n.d.	Open
B2022-0034/001(08)	Golden Jubilee Medal Certificate	2002	Open
B2022-0034/001(09)	University of Guelph Honorary Degree	2005	Open
B2022-0034/001P	Mel Watkins speaking in Convocation Hall	Feb. 1996	Open

Series 3:	University	of Toronto	and Teaching
-----------	------------	------------	--------------

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/009(01)	[Correspondence]	1959-	Open; see
		1961	B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/009(02)	The International Economy since 1750. Syllabus	[196-?]	Open
B2022-0034/009(03)	[Faculty of Arts & Science] House Committee	1963- 1965	Open
B2022-0034/009(04)	[Woodsworth Foundation Seminar on Planning and Poverty - correspondence]	1965- 1966	Open
B2022-0034/009(06)	Conference on Society and Technology, Upper Canada Village, May 1965	1965	Open
B2022-0034/009(07)	Correspondence, 1965-1966	1965- 1966	Open
B2022-0034/009(08)	Rochdale College [Governing Council]	1965- 1966	Open
B2022-0034/009(09)	[Letter from George Grant]	3 Apr. 1970	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/009(10)	[Scholarly activities, 1977-78 and 1978-79]	1977- 1979	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/009(11)	Alumni Faculty Award Nomination	1981	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/009(12)	[Correspondence about cross- appointment to University College]	1980- 1981	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/009(13)	Faculty of Medicine. Professional Committee on Native Students. Minutes of Meeting, 16 June 1983	Jun. 1983	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/009(14)	[Grant application - The Political Economy of Canada-U.S. Bilateral Free Trade]	1986	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/009(15)	Activity Report, 1986-1987	1987	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/009(16)	Personal correspondence	1986- 1988	Open
B2022-0034/009(17)	[U of T correspondence]	1986- 1987	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/009(18)	Consultant's Report to Appraisals	1990	Open
	Committee, Ontario Council on		
	Graduate Studies re: MA		
	Programme in Political Economy,		
	Carleton University		
B2022-0034/009(19)	[Carleton University. Political	[ca.	Open
	Economy of War and Dissent]	2005]	
B2022-0034/009(20)	[Carleton University. Political	2005	Open
	Economy of War and Dissent] -		
	Lecture 1 - Power and Dissent		
B2022-0034/009(21)	[Carleton University. Political	2006	Open
	Economy of War and Dissent] -		
	Syllabus, winter 2006		
B2022-0034/009(22)	[Carleton University. Political	2010	Open
	Economy of War and Dissent] -		
	Capitalism and Risk		
B2022-0034/009(23)	Simon Fraser University [SFU]	2009	Open
	Canadian Studies course -		
	"Canada in the Age of Empire and		
	Globalization" [syllabus, notes]		

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/010(01)	Mr. Gordon [Memos and Correspondence]	1967	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/010(02)	Canada Development Corporation	1967	Open
B2022-0034/010(03)	Advisory Committee of Senior Officials	1967	Open
B2022-0034/010(04)	Draft of the Working Paper	1967	Open
B2022-0034/010(05)	Meetings	1967	Open
B2022-0034/010(06)	[Members list]	1967- 1967	Open
B2022-0034/010(07)	"The Politics of Economic Dependence" by Stephen Clarkson	1967	Open
B2022-0034/010(08)	Report of the Task Force. Proposals	1967	Open
B2022-0034/010(09)	Committee of Ministers	1967- 1968	Open
B2022-0034/010(10)	Administrative / Personal	1967- 1968	Open
B2022-0034/010(11)	[Correspondence with Kenneth L.M. Carter]	1968	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/010(12)	[correspondence with W.O. Twaits, President, Imperial Oil Limited]	1968	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

## Series 4: Task Force on the Structure of Canadian Industry

## Series 5: The Waffle and NDP

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/011(01)	May Day Interchange (Vol. 1, no. 6)	1969	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(02)	"Economic Independence and Socialism", presented to the Federal Council of the New Democratic Party, Montreal, 31 May 1969	1969	Open
B2022-0034/011(03)	For An Independent Socialist Canada - "Waffle Manifesto" and some supporting resolutions	[ca. 1969?]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(04)	[Manifesto / 1969 NDP Convention, Winnipeg]	1969- 1970	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(05)	[Saskatchewan Waffle]	1970	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(06)	Leader's Report to Provincial Council, 12 April 1970 [Woodrow Lloyd, leader of Saskatchewan NDP]	12 Apr. 1970	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(07)	[Edmonton Young New Democrats]	1970	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(08)	Community Concern, vol. 1 no. 3 [publication]	19 Mar. 1970	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(09)	Policy Statement on Vietnam [Ontario NDP]	1970	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(10)	[Letter from Watkins to Editorial Board of the Canadian Forum]	[ca. 1970]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(11) B2022-0034/011(12)	[Dunlop plant shutdown / closure] "For an Independent Socialist Canada" [NDP Convention, Ottawa, 1971]	1970 1971	Open Open
B2022-0034/011(13)	Book Review. Ed Broadbent, "The Liberal Rip-off"	Apr. 1971	Open
B2022-0034/011(14)	Brief for the ONDP Hearings, Toronto, 27 April 1972, by the Ontario Waffle	Apr. 1972	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(15)	[Letter from Douglas Verney]	25 Jun. 1972	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/011(16)	Kelly Crichton and Mel Watkins, "A	10 Jul.	Open; see
	Statement on the Choices Facing the Waffle"	1972	B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(17)	[Resignation as the NDP federal	22 Aug.	Open; see
	candidate for Parkdale]	1972	B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(18)	Waffle News	1971, 1973	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(19)	Waffle - Policy Statement on Housing and Tenants' Rights		Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(20)	Waffle - On the Liberation of Women		Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(21)	[Ontario Waffle Resolutions - Universities, Public Education, Extra Parliamentary Activity (Minority Rights)]		Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(22)	A Programme for Reform [Canadian Labour Congress]	[197-?]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(23)	"The Poor: The Economically, Socially, and Politically Dispossessed" [Waffle position paper?]	[197-]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(24)	Towards A Movement For An Independent Socialist Canada. A Proposal for the Ontario Waffle Conference, August 19th and 20th, 1972 - London	1972	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(25)	[Ontario Waffle Council]	1973- 1974	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(26)	Ontario Waffle	1973- 1974	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(27)	Ontario Waffle Executive	1973	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(28)	For A Socialist Ontario In An Independent Socialist Canada	[197-]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(29)	Saskatchewan Waffle Conference	1973	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/011(30)	Public Ownership of Canada's Oil and Gas: An Open Letter To Canadians From the Toronto Waffle Movement For An	Jun. 1973	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(31)	Independent, Socialist Canada Toronto Waffle Educational Committee	1973	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(32)	Artistic Woodwork [strike / rally]	1973- 1974	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(33)	[News clipping - Toronto Citizen, "The NDP Waffle Purge: One Year Later"]	Jun. 1973	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(34)	[James] Laxer	[197-], 1984	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(35)	"May The Farce Be With You", The Innis Memorial Column, This Magazine	Mar. 1982	Open
B2022-0034/011(36)	RCMP [photocopy of RCMP's file on the NDP Waffle Movement, 1973]	1992	Open
B2022-0034/011(37)	"The Waffle and the National Question", Studies in Political Economy 32, Summer 1990	1990	Open
B2022-0034/011(38)	"Wither the NDP?" [handwritten draft notes]	[ca. 1997- 1998]	Open
B2022-0034/011(39)	NDP Renfrew-Nippising AGM [speaking notes]	[199-?]	Open
B2022-0034/011(40)	Beaches-East York Election 2000	2000	Open
B2022-0034/011(41)	"The Need for the Waffle and Economic Nationalism in Canada", talk at the University of Manitoba	23 Oct. 2009	Open
B2022-0034/011(42)	"The Legacy of the Waffle and the Future of the Left", talk at the University of Winnipeg	23 Oct. 2009	Open

### Series 6: Activism and Consultancy

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/011(43)	Teach-in on Vietnam	1965	Open
B2022-0034/011(44)	International Teach-In	1965	Open
B2022-0034/011(45)	International Forum Foundation [correspondence]	1966	Open
B2022-0034/011(46)	Open Letter to the Twenty-Seventh Parliament and the Government of Canada on the Canadian Involvement in the Vietnam War	1966	Open
B2022-0034/011(47)	[Ontario Youth Conference about Vietnam War at Hart House]	1966	Open
B2022-0034/011(48)	Canadian Medical Aid Committee for Vietnam [CONTENT WARNING]*	1966	Open
B2022-0034/011(49)	Guidance [to high school students]	1962, 1966	Open
B2022-0034/011(50)	[Letter to the Editor - Toronto Daily Star, about sit-in]	26 Mar. 1970	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(51)	[ULSR (University League for Social Reform) Project on Nationalism]	[196-]	Open
B2022-0034/011(52)	ULSR [University League for Social Reform]: Nationalism in Canada	[196-]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(53)	Hymer / ULSR ["Direct Foreign Investment and the National Economic Interest" by Stephen Hymer]	1966	Open
B2022-0034/011(54)	[Anti-Draft Programme]	1967	Open
B2022-0034/011(55)	[Letters from Indian Brotherhood of the Northwest Territories]	13 Dec. 1973	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(56)	[News clippings about Watkins' role as advisor to the Indian Brotherhood of the Northwest Territories]	1974- 1975	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(57)	"Wah-shee and the left: A tale of the territories", Saint John's Calgary Report, May 20 1977	1977	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

<sup>\*</sup> **CONTENT WARNING:** This file contains an image of three Vietnamese children laying on the ground, injured.

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/011(58)	[Remarks by Watkins about Hugh	[197-?]	Open; see
	McCullum's resignation from		B2022-0034/016.
	Project North]		
B2022-0034/011(59)	People's Commission on Policy	1985	Open; see
	Alternatives [pamphlet]		B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(60)	[Rallies / talks about Free Trade -	1988-	Open; see
	posters]	1991	B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/011(61)	[Poster - A Public Forum on the 1st	1989	Open; see
	Free Trade Budget, June 12, Hotel		B2022-0034/016.
	Newfoundland, sponsored by the		
	Coalition For Equality]		
B2022-0034/011(62)	May Day Cabaret: An Anti-Free	1988	Open
	Trade Bash [handwritten speaking		
	notes]		
B2022-0034/011(63)	Coalition Against Free Trade,	1988	Open
	"What's The Big Deal? Some		
	straightforward questions and		
	answers on free trade"		
B2022-0034/011(64)	Left Economics Forum [founding -	1997-	Open
	draft meeting agenda, constitution	1998	
	and by-laws, members list, notes]		
B2022-0034/011(65)	Science for Peace Bulletin	1999	Open
	[President's Message by Watkins]		
B2022-0034/011(66)	"Max Born's Refusal" and "Joseph	[ca.	Open
	Rotblat: From Los Alamos to	2002]	
	Pugwash"		
B2022-0034/011(67)	"The Legacy of Joseph Rotblat",	Jun.	Open
	INESAP Information Bulletin	2006	
B2022-0034/011(68)	Bibliography / Outline [working	[ca.	Open
	title: "Unbuilding the Bomb"]	2002-	
		2003]	
B2022-0034/011(69)	Bomb - general	2001-	Open
. ,	[Science for Peace; Pugwash]	2002	
B2022-0034/011(70)	[Andrei] Sakharov / USSR	[200-?]	Open
. ,	[research file]		
B2022-0034/012(01)	"The Beatification of J. Robert	[200-]	Open
. ,	Oppenheimer''		
B2022-0034/012(02)	Einstein [research file]	[200-]	Open

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/012(03)	Israel / [Mordecai] Vanunu [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/012(04)	"The First Abstainers: Max Born, Helen Smith, Lise Meitner, Franco Rasetti, Norbert Weiner, Leon Katz"	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/012(05)	Oppenheimer - Science for Peace [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/012(06)	[Joseph] Rotblat and Pugwash [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/012(07)	Oppenheimer / Eisenhower [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/012(08)	"Canada's Military Spending" - St. Lawrence Centre Forum [handwritten speaking notes]	Nov. 2002	Open
B2022-0034/012(09)	Copenhagen & Heisenberg / Bohr Sep' 41 meeting [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(01)	Missile Defense [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(02)	[Jonathan] Schell [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(03)	Hussain al-Shahristani & Iraq [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(04)	Genocide [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(05)	[Linus] Pauling [handwritten notes]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(06)	Lee Butler [Canadian Network to Abolish Nuclear Weapons poster]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(07)	[Leo] Szilard [research file]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(08)	Museum of War (& Peace) [petition for an expanded mandate]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/013(09)	Pugwash	2003	Open
B2022-0034/013(10)	Dehco Negotiations	2002, 2006	Open
B2022-0034/013(11)	["The Judge, the Dene, the Pipeline and the Premier" - speaking notes]	[ca. 2002]	Open

## Series 7: Research and Writing

File number	File title	Date	Access
		range	
B2022-0034/013(12)	[Letters about "A Staple Theory of	1963-	Open; see
	Economic Growth"]	1964	B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/013(13)	[Letter from A.R.M. Lower, Queen's	Jul. 1969	Open; see
	University]		B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/013(14)	The 'American System' and	1967	Open
	Canada's National Policy, CAAS		
	Bulletin, Winter 1967		
B2022-0034/013(15)	[Toronto Star column and clippings	1968-	Open
	with related correspondence]	1970	
B2022-0034/013(16)	[Correspondence - Reprinting of	1979	Open; see
	"The Staples Theory Revisited"]		B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/013(17)	[Draft book chapter - "Neo-	[198-]	Open; see
	Conservative Policies in Practice"]		B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/013(18)	[Manuscript review. R.T. Naylor,	1980	Open; see
	"Canada in the European Age		B2022-0034/016.
	1453-1919]		
B2022-0034/013(19)	[Letter from Edward Silva]	2 Nov.	Open; see
		1981	B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/013(20)	"Strange Bedfellows: Canadian		Open; see
	Churches and the New Political		B2022-0034/016.
	Economy"		
B2022-0034/013(21)	Foreign Control of Resource Sector		Open; see
	[handwritten notes]		B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/013(22)	"The World View of Economics 100"	1980	Open
	[handwritten notes]		
B2022-0034/013(23)	Words: Person, place or people	[198-]	Open
	[notes and clippings]		
B2022-0034/013(24)	[Karl] Polanyi-Levitt Political	1992,	Open
	Economy project	1998	
B2022-0034/013(25)	"From Boom to Economic Crisis",	1997	Open
	Compass: A Jesuit Journal,		
	March/April 1997		
B2022-0034/013(26)	[Foreign Ownership]	2008	Open
B2022-0034/013(27)	Trade file [notes, clippings,	n.d.,	Open
	speaking notes on globalization]	2011	
B2022-0034/014(01)	"The Book of Trade" [draft printouts]	[201-]	Open

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/014(02)	"Thinking About the Next Canadian Economy: A Social Democratic Perspective"	[ca. 2013]	Open
B2022-0034/014(03)	"The Market for Gossip"	[ca. 1998]	Open
B2022-0034/014(04)	Auto notes	[199-]	Open
B2022-0034/014(05)	Beginnings [notes]	[ca. 1997]	Open
B2022-0034/014(06)	"Borders Canada: Creation and Crisis"	[199-]	Open
B2022-0034/014(07)	"Borders Canada: Creation and Crisis"	[199-]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/014(08)	[Letter from Philip Resnick, UBC]	11 Jun. 1996	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/014(09)	[Globalization notes]	[200-]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/014(10)	[Marjorie Cohen - Royal Society of Canada nomination]	n.d.	Open
B2022-0034/014(11)	Canadian Dimension [magazine] - Autobiographies of public intellectuals	2004	Open
B2022-0034/014(12)	"The Permanent War or HOMO the Sap", Chapter 1, Lorne T. Morgan [with covering note from John Robert Colombo]	2006	Open

## Series 8: Harold Innis

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/014(13)	[Watkin's annotated copy of Harold Innis' "The Strategy of Culture"]	n.d.	Open
B2022-0034/014(14)	"Innis on America"	[198-]	Open
B2022-0034/014(15)	Innis letters [typed, with cover letter from Anne Innis Dagg, 1 Oct. 1992]		Open
B2022-0034/014(16)	McLuhan [research file, notes]	[199-?]	Open
B2022-0034/014(17)	"Harold Innis's Twentieth Century" [incomplete draft]	[199-]	Open
B2022-0034/014(18)	[Notes on Harold Innis and W. A. Mackintosh]	[199-]	Open
B2022-0034/014(19)	Innis and Intellectual Practice	[ca. 1994]	Open
B2022-0034/014(20)	Innis Research Bulletin, May 1994 (Issue 1). A publication of the Harold Innis Research Institute	1994	Open
B2022-0034/014(21)	"Innis at 100: Reflections on His Legacy for Canadian Studies", revision of a paper presented to Association of Canadian Studies, Calgary	Jun. 1994	Open
B2022-0034/014(22)	Harold Innis and Intellectual Practice for the New Century: Interdisciplinary and Critical Studies [conference poster]	Oct. 1994	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/014(23)	CBC Radio Ideas. The Legacy of Harold Innis [transcript]	Dec. 1994	Open
B2022-0034/014(24)	"Language and Lying - The Return of Ideology". The Inaugural Innis Lecture by John Ralston Saul	11 Nov. 1994	Open
B2022-0034/014(25)	[Letter to Anne Innis Dagg about the Harold Innis Foundation organizational changes]	[ca. 1996]	Open
B2022-0034/014(26)	[untitled article about labour history, unions]	[199-?]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

File number	File title	Date	Access
		range	
B2022-0034/014(27)	"Technomania and Technophobia	1996	Open
	since Innis", Innis Memorial Lecture		
	1996 by Rick Salutin		
B2022-0034/014(28)	[Lecture notes on Harold Innis for	[200-]	Open
	Rick Salutin's class]		
B2022-0034/014(29)	[Lecture notes on Harold Innis for	2000-	Open
	Rick Salutin's class]	2002	
B2022-0034/015(01)	"Heralding Innis", Innis Memorial	2002	Open
	Column, This Magazine		
B2022-0034/015(02)	"Manifesto destiny", Innis Memorial	Jan-Feb	Open
	Column, This Magazine	2002	
B2022-0034/015(03)	WWI blogs [reading notes, Innis on	[ca.	Open
	America]	2013-	
		2014]	

## Series 9: Talks

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/015(04)	"Individualism in Asia and the West: What Are The Prospects?", American Council of Learned Societies, January 1957 meeting, Panel II - Economic Growth and the Individual: Introductory Comments	Jan. 1957	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(05)	"Nationalism and Media", Centre for Culture and Technology meeting	25 Jan. 1965	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(06)	World Population speech [correspondence]	1965	Open
B2022-0034/015(07)	"The Canadian Economy and Its Politics", an address to Ontario Federation of Labour Annual Educational Conference, Niagara Falls	12 Feb. 1966	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/015(08)	"Business History"	[196-?]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(09)	"Some Problems for Canada in Economic Relations with the U.S.A.", The Conference on Canada, Latin America, and USA Foreign Policy at Northwestern University	18 Feb. 1972	Open
B2022-0034/015(10)	"A Comparison of Northeastern Ontario's Economy with that of Third World Countries", Proceedings of the Second Annual Conference of the Municipal Advisory Committee on Provincial Planning in Northeastern Ontario	1977	Open
B2022-0034/015(11)	"The Political Economy of Ontario", Conference Paper - Institute for Christian Life in Canada, Loretto College, Toronto	24 Aug. 1978	Open
B2022-0034/015(12)	"Economic Crisis and Layoffs", Speech to USWA Local 1005 Hamilton	18 Oct. 1982	Open
B2022-0034/015(13)	Woodsworth Foundation Conference [handwritten speaking notes]	Nov. 1982	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(14)	CAIMAW [Canadian Association of Industrial Mechanical and Allied Workers] Convention, June 1983 [correspondence]	1982- 1983	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(15)	[Remarks for Canadian Conference on Economic Conversion - handwritten]	[ca. 1985]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(16)	[Posters of Talks]	[199-]	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/015(17)	"Quebec, Canada and the Economics of Nationalism", UC [University College] Symposium	Feb. 1995	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(18)	Speech - Democrats Abroad	27 Apr. 1996	Open
B2022-0034/015(19)	Panel on English Canada and Political Crisis - Society for Socialist Studies - Brock University	Jun. 1996	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(20)	"Social Democracy Today", CCPA Symposium on Social Democracy, Ottawa [speaking notes]	29 Aug. 1997	Open
B2022-0034/015(21)	"Globalization and Ontario Politics", Seminar on Public Good or Private Greed? Building A Democratic Society, PAAC [Progressive Academic-Activist Collective], Innis Town Hall [speaking notes]	17 Sep. 1997	Open
B2022-0034/015(22)	"A Vision on Values and Action", PAAC [Progressive Academic- Activist Collective] [speaking notes]	Mar. 1998	Open
B2022-0034/015(23)	"Economic Nationalism: Dead or Alive", Mount Allison University [speaking notes]	Apr. 1998	Open
B2022-0034/015(24)	"The MAI and the Return of Economic Nationalism", Sudbury [speaking notes]	Apr. 1998	Open
B2022-0034/015(25)	CEP [Communications, Energy and Paperworkers Union of Canada] Convention - speaking notes [handwritten]	[200-]	Open
B2022-0034/015(26)	"Social Citizenship", Canadian Studies Lecture, Trent University	Mar. 2000	Open; see B2022-0034/016.

File number	File title	Date range	Access
B2022-0034/015(27)	"The State of the State", CIIA National Foreign Policy Conference, Toronto	Mar. 2000	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(28)	"What's Wrong with (Canadian) Business?", U of T Lecture	Feb. 2000	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(29)	"Toronto: From Bay Street to Main Street", Elderhostel Program - Discover Toronto: The Livable City	2000	Open; see B2022-0034/016.
B2022-0034/015(30)	Windsor Public Library [handwritten speaking notes]	[ca. 2003?]	Open
B2022-0034/015(31)	"The Proper Study of Canada: The Case for Canadian Studies" - speaking notes	Feb. 2009	Open
B2022-0034/015(32)	[Handwritten speaking notes - tribute to Gil Levine]	[ca. 2009]	Open
B2022-0034/015(33)	[Globalization - notes, CEA Panel June 2010, clippings]	2009- 2011	Open
B2022-0034/015(34)	CEA PEF meeting 2011 [notes] - Nobels	[ca. 2011]	Open